
  
 
 

NOTICE OF ITEM(S) OF BUSINESS 
TO BE CONSIDERED BY 

INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 
 
 
Date when item(s) to 
be considered: 

 24th February 2010 at 9.00 am. 
   
Name of Individual 
Member(s) (Portfolio 
Holder[s]) who will 
consider the item(s): 

 Councillors K Churchill and T V Rogers 

   
Subject of item(s) to 
be considered: 

 Grant Aid to Voluntary Organisations 
20010/11 

   
Summary of item(s) to 
be considered: 

 To consider further applications for 
grant aid for Capital and Revenue Grant 
in 2010/11 

   
  Supporting report attached. 
   
Contact for further 
supporting 
information: 

 Sue Lammin Head of Environmental 
Health Services 
� 01480 388280 
e-mail Sue.Lammin@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

  Daniel Smith 
Community Initiatives Manager 
� 01480 388377 
e-mail Dan.Smith@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

This Notice has been copied to the Chairman of the  
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 
 

 
 
 
  
1. 2010/11  (Pages 1 - 14) 
 
 
  



 
 



 1 

COMT 9 FEBRUARY 2010 
DELEGATED EXECUTIVE COUNCILLORS  
(HOUSING AND PUBLIC HEALTH AND FINANCE) 

24 FEBURARY 2010 
 
CONSIDERATION OF  CAPITAL GRANT AID APPLICATIONS RECEIVED- 2010/11 
Review of revenue programmes 2009/10 and update on possible changes involving 
Participatory Budgeting and the Capital Grant Aid programme from 1 April 2011 

(Report by Head of Environmental & Community Health Services) 
 
1. Purpose of report 
 
1.1 The main purpose of this report is to provide members with sufficient 

information to determine the allocation of the Capital Grant Aid budget for 
2010/11 according to the bids received. The report also provides members with 
performance information relating to those services commissioned form 
voluntary organisations in 2009/10. In addition the report also provides 
members with an update on Participatory Budgeting. 

 
2. Introduction 
 
2.1 The District Council’s cabinet Committee on the 27 February 2002 agreed that 

responsibility for determining capital awards from the grant aid budget was 
delegated by Council to Executive Councillors for Housing and Public Health 
and Finance. 

 
 
2.1 This report is set out in three parts section 3 of this report is to outline the 

current capital grant aid budget and make recommendations for capital awards 
(Appendix ‘A’) for 20010/11 in line with the councils eligibility criteria set out in 
section 2.1 below. Section 4 of the report will provide members with information 
on the performance in 2009/10 of those organisations who are commissioned 
to provide agreed services.  Section 5 of the report will outline proposals for a 
review of the present capital grant aid programme and Participatory Budgeting.  

 
Capital Grant Aid 
 
3. CAPITAL PROJECTS 
 
3.1 The aim of capital grant aid is to support capital projects that deliver a meeting 

place, a playground or a playing field to identifiable communities. It is also 
normal for projects supported by this fund to have significant lead-in periods. 
Projects meeting the overall aim can further be assessed against a range of 
agreed criteria to allow a priority list to be evolved. The priority order is:  

 
Priority 1 Projects to address legislative requirements; 
Priority 2 Projects for the correction of health and safety failures; 
Priority 3 Projects for the provision of facilities where none currently exist; 
Priority 4 Projects for the replacement of provision which has come to the 

end of its natural life; and 
Priority 5 Projects for the improvement or replacement of existing 

facilities. 
 
3.2 It has previously been agreed that the maximum grant payable to support any 

one project is £30,000, but no grant from this fund may exceed one quarter of 
the total cost of the project.  

Agenda Item 1

1



 2 

 
3.3 Appendix ‘A’ attached provides details of the applications received for this 

financial year. The details include: a brief summary of the purpose for which 
grant aid is requested, officer comments on the individual applications and 
recommendations. 

 
The budgetary position for capital awards is set out below:- 

 
3.4 Capital Budget Figures 
 

 £’000 
Original 2010/11 Budget Allocation  69 
Add Delayed Allocation from 2009/10  12 
  81 
Less Ramsey Community Centre paid in 2009/10  -30 
 Other re-phasing to 2009/10  -14 
Current 2010/11 Budget Allocation  37 
Less Pre-allocations:_ 
    RAF Wyton 
     

 
 -12  

Unallocated Capital Budget 2010/11  25,000 
 
4 Performance reviews of organisations for work commissioned during 2009/10 
 

4.1 Members will recall that at the start of 2008/09 financial year the authority entered     
into 5 year funding agreements with a number of voluntary/community organisations 
who the authority considered strategically important Appendix ‘B’ attached provides 
details on the first years performance 

 
4.2  The organisations and the financial support provided to them in 2009/10 are set out 

below:- 
 

Organisation Amount 
Huntingdonshire CAB 
Huntingdonshire CAB additional funds 

166,260 
*20,000 

Hunts Forum for Voluntary Organisations 40,790 
Volunteer Huntingdonshire (formally 
Huntingdonshire Federation of Volunteer Bureaux) 

36,770 
Huntingdon Shopmobility 37,110 
Bedford Pilgrims Housing association (agreement 
ends March 2011) 

36,770 
St Barnabas Community Learning Centre 26,110 
Disability Information Service Huntingdonshire 7,000 
Natural High **4,000 

Total 374,810 
  * Supplementary award £14K in 2010/11 
  ** Rental Subsidy 
 
4.3 As part of the service agreements with the above organisations each 

organisation agreed to meet service targets and to provide reports as to how 
they are meeting these targets. In the case of Hunts Forum for Voluntary 
Organisations and Volunteer Huntingdon the agreements are joint as 
Cambridgeshire County Council is co-funders. 

 

2



 3 

4.3 Details of the revenue grant aid budget for 2010/11 are set out below.  
 
 
 £ £ 
Total Grants Budget 2010/11   383,530 
Less Service Agreement Commitments:- 
  Huntingdonshire CAB 
 Huntingdonshire CAB additional funds 
  Hunts Forum for Voluntary Organisations 
  Volunteer Huntingdonshire 
  Huntingdon Shopmobility* 
  Bedford Pilgrims Housing Association 
  St Barnabas Community Learning Centre 
  Disability Information Service 
  Natural High 

 
 169,250 
        14,000 
 41,200 
 37,140 
 37,430 
 37,140 
 26,370 
 7,070 
 4,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 -372,715 

Unallocated Revenue Budget 2010/11   10,815 
 
Note 

The Shopmobility amount includes £11K rental payment for temporary office 
accommodation rented by the authority on behalf of Shopmobility, this element 
of funding will be retained by authority to meet these costs. 

 
4.4 Appendix ‘C’ set out below provides details of the organisations performance 

over the first 9 months of this financial year and includes officer’s comment to 
assist interpretation of the figures. 

 
5 Participatory Budgeting and the future of Capital Grant Aid. 
 
5.1 The eligibility criteria and priorities for capital grant Aid as (set out in section 2.1 

of this report) have not been reviewed for over 11 years. In light of changing 
demand on the Capital Grant Aid budget it would be appropriate to review both 
the eligibility criteria, priorities and application procedure to ensure the budget 
continues to support the council’s strategic objectives. 

 
5.2 In 2009/10 a pilot project was run to evaluate the benefits of Participatory 

Budgeting an allocation of £50K was made to support the pilot projects in 
Huntingdonshire.  

 
5.3 It is proposed that subject to match funding been confirmed by Cambridgeshire 

County Council a budget of £25,000 be ring fenced for a period of 5 years this 
time period will also need to be  matched by Cambridgeshire County Council. 
That any development of Participatory budgeting to be linked to the recently 
established neighbourhood forum localities and operated on an annual 
rotational basis. However if members agree the proposal for ring fencing funds 
for participatory budgeting there will be insufficient funds available to support 
any capital grant aid requests in 2010/11 

 
5.4 Members will recall that an initial report on the participatory budgeting pilot 

projects was reported to members on the 17 December, section 4 of the report 
outlined a possible structure for Participatory Budgeting. It was too early in 
December to evaluate the outcomes of the pilot projects; it was only possible to 
evaluate the process. It is therefore proposed that a full evaluation report with 
firm proposals will be provided for members around October 2010. 

3



 4 

 
5.5 In the December report it was identified that the cost to HDC for funds provided 

for allocation in 2008/09 was £50K and it was concluded that participation in 
future participatory budgeting process would require funding of that order each 
year. 

 
5.6 Following the 17 December report further investigations suggest that a budget 

of £25K a year for 5 years may be sufficient subject to matched funding been 
provide by Cambridgeshire County Council for the same duration, negotiations 
with Cambridgeshire County Council are ongoing. 

 
5.7 The unallocated capital budget for 2010/11 is only £25K. As Cambridgeshire 

County Council have yet to agree any match funding, and as capital bids have 
been received for funds their should be no participatory budgeting exercise in 
Huntingdonshire in 2010/11  

 
5.8 Any new structure for the operation and management of the Capital Grant Aid 

would commence in 2011/12 financial year  
 
6. Recommendations 
 
6.1 Members agree the recommendations set out in Appendix ‘A’ of this report. 
 
6.2 Members note the officer comments in Appendix ‘B’ and ‘C’ 
 
5.2 Members to receive a report in October 2010 setting out a possible way 

forward for participatory Budgeting and priorities for the future allocation of 
Capital Grant Aid commencing April 2011. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Grant aid applications received 
Three monthly monitoring reports 
Participatory Budgeting report to HDC Cabinet 17 December 2009 
HDC Cabinet report on delegated duties 27 February 2002 
 
Contact Officer: Dan Smith, Community Manager 
 � 01480 388 377 
 

4



 5 

 
Appendix ‘A’ 
Name of 
Organisation 

Grant Summary Amount 
requested 

Officer Comments Recommendations 
Molesworth 
Village Hall 

Funds are requested from the authority to 
assist the village hall management 
committee meet costs associated with re-
pointing and making good the brickwork of 
the exterior of the village hall. The Village 
Hall Committee have received financial 
support from Sita £10,000 WREN £2,000 
and Molesworth Parish Council have 
£300. Total cost of the project £20,000 

3,700 The village hall is the former 
village school and is in need of 
structural repair works to 
ensure its long term future. The 
village Hall is the only 
community meeting place in the 
village. 

3,700 
Subject to budget 
provision 

 
Upwood 
Cricket Club 
(Re 
application) 

Funds are requested from the District 
Council to assist  with the replacement of 
the present temporary toilet facility with a 
purpose built toilet block the total cost of 
the project £9,000 

9,000 Members will recall that they 
had previously supported an 
application from the cricket club 
£2,500 in 2007/08. However 
following no progress in 
developing the project 
members agree to withdraw the 
previous grant aid award. At 
the time of the previous award, 
a larger funding pot was 
available to members and a 
certain amount of flexibility was 
shown to the organisation. The 
financial position now is very 
different.  

No Award 

 

5



 6 

Hemingford 
Abbots Village 
Hall 

Funds are requested from the district 
council towards the purchase of a variety 
of items (1) a tower to assist with 
changing bulbs etc (2) replacement 
crockery (3) replacement of cupboard 
doors and (4) replacement of existing 
chairs. The total cost of the project 9,550 

6,000 All of the costs outlined in the 
application are linked to 
general operating costs and the 
replacement costs should be 
covered via the organisations 
rental charges. 

No Award 

 
Earith Parish 
Council 

Grant aid assistance is requested towards 
costs associated with the provision of 
disability access, disabled toilets, provision 
of fire and alarm systems and security 
shutters at the village hall. The total cost of 
the project is £57,500 

14,375 The hall was built in 1953 and 
many of the improvements 
proposed are required to enable 
the building to meet legislative 
requirements. All the aspects of 
work outlined in the application 
with the exception of the 
security shutters meet eligibility 
criteria 1 and 2.  

14,375  
Subject to budget 

provision 

 
Bridge Money 
Advice & 
Community 
Care Centre 

The applicant organisation is requesting 
financial assistance from the district 
towards costs associated installing a stair 
lift and disabled toilet facilities at the 
organisations premises. The total cost of 
the project is 20,000 

10,000 The applicant organisation 
operates an advice service in St 
Ives. The District Council 
already provide substantial 
funding to the CAB agency 
which includes the provision of 
outreach services in St Ives. 
The application also fails to 
meet the council’s eligibility 
criteria as set out in section 2.1 
of this report. 

No Award 

 

6



 7 

Fenstanton 
Bowles Club 

The bowls club are requesting grant aid 
towards the cost of purchasing a 6KVA 
diesel powered generator with self start 
facilities and construction of building to 
locate the generator. The total cost of the 
project is £5,000 

3,000 This application fails to meet the 
council’s eligibility criteria. 

No Award 

 
Easton 
Parochial 
Church Council  

The PCC for St Peter’s Church, Easton are 
requesting financial assistance from the 
authority towards costs associated with 
providing disabled toilet and kitchen 
facilities at the church. The total cost of the 
project is £94,409 

8,750 The District Council’s policy has 
always been that funding would 
only be provided to places of 
worship if they were the only 
meeting place within the 
community there is no village 
hall or meeting place in Easton. 
However the facilities requested 
are to support the various 
concert events that take place at 
the church. Many of the people 
who attend come from outside 
the area Easton parish have 
only 60 dwellings. 

No Award 

 
Eaton Socon 
Cricket Club 
(Application 
received after 
closing date 8-
12-09) 

The cricket club are requesting grant aid 
assistance towards costs associated with 
providing disabled toilet facilities, female 
toilets new changing facilities for officials 
and upgrading changing rooms. Total 
project cost £21,500 

5,000 This application was received 
after the closing date. The 
application fails to meet the 
council’s eligibility criteria. 

No Award 

 Total Recommendations 18,075 
 
 

7



 8 

Appendix ‘B’ 2008/09 performance review 
Organisation – Huntingdonshire Citizens Advice Bureaux 
PI’s 6,500 advice 

cases dealt with 
per annum  

 
 
 
 

5,000 hours of advice provided by 
volunteer advisers. 

 
 
 

CAB offices in St Neots & 
Huntingdon open for a 
minimum of 2000 hours 
of delivered advice. 

 

Minimum of 10% of funds 
above HDC contribution 
acquired externally. 

 
 

Minimum 
of 100 
(half day) 
outreach 
sessions 
provided 
per 
annum. 

 
Performance 12,433 

191% 
9426 
188% 

2292 
114% 

23,171 
159% 

131 
131% 

Comment All targets exceeded. 
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2008/09 £145,580 

Organisation – Hunts Forum for Voluntary Organisations 
PI’s A minimum of 

£100,000 
levered into 
Huntingdonshire 
via funding bids 
to support local 
voluntary 
organisations 

 
 
 

25 local 
voluntary 
organisations 
supported to 
present 
external bids 
to funding 
agencies. 

 
 

4 groups supported to 
acquire accreditation 
appropriate to service 
(IiP, Pqasso quality 
marks etc)  

Produce and update data 
base of Huntingdonshire 
Voluntary organisations 
twice per annum. 

 
 

Monthly web 
newsletter 
produced and 
circulated to 
voluntary 
organisations. 
 

 
 
 

Increase 
the 
number 
of 
voluntary 
sector 
members 
of HFVO 
by 10% 
per 
annum. 

 

6 training 
events 
held per 
annum. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Performance £108,021 
108% 

32 
128% 

3 
75% 

2 
100% 

28 
233% 

32 
119% 

10 
160% 

Comment The organisation works very actively with thwe authority on a number of partnership projects and initiatives. 
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2008/09 £39,990 

8



 9 

 
Organisation – Huntingdon Shopmobility 
PI’s 1250 

shop 
mobility 
users 
per  
annum 
 

 

Huntingdon service to be 
provided 5 days per week. 

 
140 new service 
users per annum 

 
 
 
 

2 publicity events 
held per year. 

 
 
 
 
(1) 

To undertake a feasibility project to 
evaluate the need for a  shopmobility 
service in St Ives. 

Performance 1869 
149% 

263 
104% 

184 
120% 

1 
100% 

Completed 

Comment The organisation achieved all targets set. 
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2008/09 £25,000 

Organisation – St Barnabas Community Learning Centre 
PI’s 1600 

service 
users 
per 
annum 

 

100 new learners per annum 
 
 
 

32 crèche places 
provided per 
annum to support 
training session. 

 

Project to acquire 
20% additional 
funding above HDC 
provided funds per 
annum. 

 
 

(£3,916) 

   

Performance 1061 
66% 

92 
92% 

32 
100% 

£22,324 
211% 

   
Comment At the start of the year the organisation had major staffing difficulties measures were put in place to address the under 

performance in specific areas 
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2008/09 £25,000 

9



 10 

 
Organisation – Huntingdonshire Federation of Volunteer Bureaux 
PI’s 500 volunteers 

recruited per 
annum. 

 
 

2 events per annum promoting 
volunteering 

 
 

Increase the number of 
organisations receiving 
volunteers via the 
volunteer bureaux by 
10% on 07/8 figure  

 

Increase the number of 
people regularly 
participating in 
volunteering (4hrs or 
more per week) form 
07/8 bench mark by 
b10% 

 

   

Performance 511 
102% 

2 
100% 

120 
144% 

278 
117% 

   
Comment The organisation meeting all targets. 

Total HDC revenue contribution for 2008/09 £36,770 
Organisation – Bedford Pilgrims Housing Association 
PI’s Establish resident, 

developer and 
stakeholder 
partnership forum.  

 

Welcome packs developed for all new 
residents and delivered to new 
residents within 1 week of arrival. 

Work with Residents to 
form residents 
association  
 
 

 

Services 
for young 
people 
established  
 

 

6 
Welcome 
events 
organised 
for new 
residents. 

 

Loves farm 
Community 
Action plan 
to be 
produced.  

 
 

Performance Slow progress due 
to developer 
inaction 

Achieved Due to slow take up of 
housing delayed 

Due to 
slow take 
up of 
housing 
delayed 

6events 
organised  

Due to 
slow take 
up of 
housing 
delayed 

Comment Developments at Loves Farm slowed during the economic downturn in 08/09 with very few residents living on the estate. 
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2008/09 £35,000 

 

10



 11 

Appendix ‘C’ 2009/10 Performance review  
Organisation – Huntingdonshire Citizens Advice Bureaux 
PI’s 8125 advice cases 

dealt with per 
annum  
 

 
(6093) 

6,000 hours of advice provided by 
volunteer advisers. 

 
 

(4500) 

CAB offices in St Neots & 
Huntingdon open for a 
minimum of 2000 hours of 
delivered advice. 

(1500) 

Minimum of 10% 
of funds above 
HDC contribution 
acquired 
externally. 

(£13,969) 

Minimum of 120 
(half day) outreach 
sessions provided 
per annum. 
 

(75) 
Performance 9203 

151% 
6963 
154% 

1609 
107% 

£21,573 
164% 

176 
234% 

Comment The PI’s figures for the CAB have been revised upwards by 20% to reflect the additional finance provided by the authority to the 
organisation in the present financial year.  
The performance figures are based on the first 9 months of the present financial year the total in brackets is the 9 month target. 
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2009/10 £186,260 

Organisation – Hunts Forum for Voluntary Organisations 
PI’s A minimum of 

£100,000 
levered into 
Huntingdonshire 
via funding bids 
to support local 
voluntary 
organisations 

 
 

(£75,000) 

25 local 
voluntary 
organisations 
supported to 
present 
external bids 
to funding 
agencies. 

 
(19) 

4 groups supported to 
acquire accreditation 
appropriate to service 
(IiP, Pqasso quality 
marks etc) 

(3) 

Produce and update data 
base of Huntingdonshire 
Voluntary organisations 
twice per annum. 

 
(1) 

Monthly web 
newsletter 
produced and 
circulated to 
voluntary 
organisations. 
 

 
 
(9) 

Increase 
the 
number of 
voluntary 
sector 
members 
of HFVO 
by 10% 
per 
annum. 

 
(10%) 

6 
training 
events 
held per 
annum. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
(5) 

Performance £154,409 
205% 

37 
194% 

3 
100% 

1 
100% 

18 
200% 

12 
120% 

7 
140% 

Comment In addition to providing support and assistance to voluntary and community organisations across Huntingdonshire, HFVO 
represents the voluntary sector on the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership Board. Additionally the organisation work in 
partnership with the authority on a number of major initiatives.  
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2009/10 £40,790 

11



 12 

 
Organisation – Huntingdon Shopmobility 
PI’s 1250 shop mobility 

users per  annum 
 
 
 

(938) 

Huntingdon service to be 
provided 5 days per week. 

(193) 
140 new service users 
per annum 

 
 
 

(105) 

2 publicity events held 
per year. 

 
 
 
 
(1) 

To provide a shopmobility 
service in St Ives. 

Performance 1563 
166% 

196 
101% 

151 
143% 

1 
100% 

0 

Comment Last year 2008/09 Huntingdon Shopmobility carried out a pilot project in St Ives to identify if there is a need for a Shopmobility 
service in the town. The pilot project was undertaken using one off funds acquired by the organisation, unfortunately long term 
sustainable revenue funding could not be identified. 
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2009/10 £37,110 

Organisation- Disability Information Service Huntingdonshire 
PI’s Minimum of 1500 cases dealt with 

per annum 
 
 

(1125) 

Minimum of 192 home 
visits per annum. 

 
 

(144) 

DISH office to be open for 
a minimum of 1000 hours 
of delivered advice per 
annum 

(750) 

A minimum of 10% of total funds 
provided by HDC & CCC to be 
acquired externally.  
 

(£2,245) 
Performance 1005 

89% 
141 
98% 

755 
101% 

£20,450 
192% 

Comment The recent climatic conditions have had a significant impact on the services provided by DISH. 
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2009/10 £7,000 

12



 13 

 
Organisation – St Barnabas Community Learning Centre 
PI’s 1600 

service 
users per 
annum 
(1200) 

100 new learners 
per annum 

 
 

(75) 

32 crèche places 
provided per annum 
to support training 
session. 

(24) 

Project to acquire 20% additional funding above HDC 
provided funds per annum. 

 
 

(£3,916) 

   

Performance 1046 
87% 

171 
228% 

24 
100% 

£20,594 
525% 

   
Comment At the start of the year the organisation were informed that Learn Direct would not be renewing their service provision contract 

for basic skills training with St Barnabas following funding reduction. The decision of Learn Direct had a major impact on the 
number of service users in the first 2 quarters of this financial year. St Barnabas has reorganised and the 3rd quarter figures are 
on track... 
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2009/10 £26,110 

Organisation – Hunts Volunteer (Formally Huntingdonshire Federation of Volunteer Bureaux) 
PI’s 550 

volunteers 
recruited 
per 
annum. 

 
(413) 

2 events per annum 
promoting 
volunteering 

 
(1) 

Increase the number 
of organisations 
receiving volunteers 
via the volunteer 
bureaux 

(84) 

Increase the number of people regularly participating 
in volunteering (4hrs or more per week) 

(237) 
   

Performance 365 
88% 

1 
100% 

121 
144% 

278 
117% 

   
Comment The organisation had staffing difficulties at the start of the year which resulted in underperforming slightly the last quarter figures 

clearly  
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2009/10 £36,770 

13



 14 

 
Organisation – Bedford Pilgrims Housing Association 
PI’s Establish resident, 

developer and 
stakeholder 
partnership forum.  
(October 2009) 

Welcome packs developed for 
all new residents and delivered 
to new residents within 1 week 
of arrival. 

Residents 
association 
formed.  
 

 
(June 2009) 

Services for 
young people 
established  
 
(Sept 2009) 

6 Welcome events 
organised for new 
residents. 

(4) 

Loves farm 
Community 
Action plan to 
be produced.  

 
(March 2010) 

Performance Forum Established 
Sept 09 

Target achieved, review of info 
pack underway 

Established 
May 2009 

Established Sept 
2009 

8 events 
organised to date 

On target 
Comment Developments at Loves Farm slowed during the economic downturn in 2009 there are clear signs that properties are starting to 

be sold on the development. 
Total HDC revenue contribution for 2009/10 £36,770 

 

14


	Agenda
	1 2010/11

